and the second s

And the second s

The Armstyle

## Dr Richardson's missions to Siam

1829-1839

About the as an experience of the first of the second section of the section of the second section of the section of the second section of the section o

Armsta Trading 18.

George Commist in production and section on their interesting. In the commist Terminal your Commission (Commission and more in a sec

Edited by

Buch Jos Ving Shan) Since Barren Angestus

Anthony Farrington

reneral representational property of the second of the sec

Ablact star (a. 1.1d. (1.5) to societ for the following of the following o

The control of the first of the control of the cont

The Eleventral's appropriate account of Lisability at Louises. People is the control of the cont

8-34-COST-FLA HINK!

staged now 4 pour appearance appears with white Loting Press bandpute A ranged

### 

© 2004 by Anthony Farrington. All rights reserved.

© Cover picture by British Library, (OICO: Photo 94/2 (74))

White Lotus Co., Ltd. GPO Box 1141 Bangkok 10501 Thailand

Telephone: (662) 332-4915 and (662) 741-6288-9

Fax: (662) 741-6607 and (662) 741-6287

E-mail: ande@loxinfo.co.th
Website: http://thailine.com/lotus

Printed in Thailand

ISBN: 974-4800-48-8

Cover picture: Moulmein from the Great Pagoda (Bourne & Shepherd Studio, Calcutta, 1870s)

#### **Contents**

Introduction	vii
1. 11 December 1829-10 March 1830 A journal of a mission from A.D.Maingy Esquire, Commissioner in the Tenasserim Provinces, to the Zemmai or Chong Mai Shans, called by us the Northern Laos and by the Siamese the Lao Thai.	
2. 6 March-21 May 1834  Narrative of a second mission to the Chiefs of Labong and Zimmay or Changmai (denominated by themselves, by us Northern Laos, and by the Burmese Yeun Shan) from Edward Augustus Blundell, Esquire, officiating Commissioner in the Tenasserim Provinces.	57
3. 29 December 1835-10 May 1836	109
Dr Richardson's third mission to the Laos Shans.  4. 18 December 1838-23 August 1839 Journal of a mission from the Supreme Government of India to the Court of Siam.	125
Abstract of Dr Richardson's journey to the Northern Shan or Laos States, 19 March-23 August 1839.	213
Dr Richardson's account of Laos Shan attacks on the Burmese frontier, with extracts from his journal, 8 May-5 August 1839.	
Dr Richardson's summary account of his stay at Bangkok, February-March 1839.	236
Notes	245
Clocomic was a first and a second sec	253
Index	263

eastward. The whole march today through the same open forest of pine, the path good and the hills not at all steep. Shot a jungle cow. There are abundance of them in the valley near our route. The flesh was harder than the worst buffaloe's. Tigers and the common deer are abundant.

។» ការប្រាស់ ខេត្ត នៃ និង និង ខេត្ត និង និង ខេត្ត និង និង ខេត្ត និង ខេត្ត និង ខេត្ត និង ខេត្ត និង ខេត្ត និង ខេ

19th February 1830. I have been obliged to halt today to refresh the elephants, as the passes are said to be difficult and no forage for three days for the elephants, of which there are seventeen large and four small ones. We are now on the site of a small city formerly inhabited by Talines, to whom all the country to the westward formerly belonged, and more lately to the Shans, but has been deserted some years on account of the devastation committed by the Burmans. The valley is a few miles in extent and through it runs the May Tuan river, which at this season is about two feet deep, and as it falls into the May-ping was formerly navigable for small canoes to Bankok. Its course is extremely winding. I have been engaged today in getting Ponya Tchi to construct a map of the Shan country, over every part of which he has repeatedly travelled. It is extremely rude, but correct, as far as I can judge from the concurrent testimony of other people, as to the situation of the large towns and courses of the rivers. No villages or small towns could be inserted for want of room.

20th February 1830. Direction S.50° W., time 16 hours 30 minutes, distance 30 miles. At 9.00 ascended along a rugged bad path. 10.07 descent. The firs, which had been gradually diminishing in number through the whole of today's march, are now only to be seen in single trees towering above the other trees of the jungle. 3.48 halted in a ravine of very thick jungle on the west bank of the May Tuan, running to the northward.

The confirmation of the contract of the contra

The march today has been the longest as to time, the most toilsome and disagreeable since leaving Maulmain. The path has been either up or down steep, almost precipitous hills, or along the bottom of ravines into which the sun can only shine a few hours in the day.

and since half past ten our course, through a thick jungle, has been all round the compass and I have been obliged to note its direction no less than eighty times to get at anything like a correct general direction, and we are again on the banks of the river which we left this morning, the course of which is even more tortuous than the one we have come. We are encamped on a small level spot of a few hundred yards surrounded by high hills, the jungle extremely thick but abounding in the hills with deer of all sizes, cows, buffaloes, tigers, leopards and rhinoceros. We passed to the end of the road which runs more to the eastward and along which the bullocks are to come. The path is much better but there are no inhabitants in that direction.

21st February 1830. Direction S.65° W., time 7 hours, distance 15 miles. At 9.16 proceeded along a narrow ascending path in thick jungle. At 4.45 halted on the May Koung, wide 30 deep 1½ feet, pebbly bed, a short way from Kana, a Karean village.

Attornation of the state of the

The march today has been over a succession of hills, some of which were nearly perpindicular and I should think almost impassable for a loaded bullock, though the elephants have travelled with ease. The path is well shaded and abundance of water, indeed the jungle has generally been so thick that we could only see a little of the path before us and a ravine or hill close to the road. The march on the whole was less disagreeable than yesterday, having been more on the hills. Between 10.26 and 10.40 passed a hill on which there are a great many lofty cinnamon trees, the only ones known by the Karreans to exist in any of the hills and are not at all prized by them. The bark is about two inches thick and of good flavour when fresh, but acquires a bitter taste when dry. Passed some immense trees, called by the Burmans couch moo, of which the canoes are made, said to be large enough to make a canoe for 5 or 600 baskets of paddy.

trans the all sayed the worker arms age early should a active

Juli samult sakana sab

running in direction SSE with a dip to the WSW. The river measured here about 300 feet, much less than one would be led to suppose from the undoubted length of its course. In the night heard deer and tiger. In the evening saw some pea fowls and wild ducks etc.

15th December 1829. Halted to apportion the loads to the coolies and to send forward for the Careens from the first village."

16th December 1829. Course N.70° E., distance 8 miles. 8.30 proceeded along a good path, practicable for bullocks, elephants etc. 9.35 at the bottom of a sharp and rather steep descent crossed the Yembyne river, about 70 feet broad, running S.45° E. 11.40 halted for the night on the banks of a small grassy lake. The path has been good and gently ascending (with an occasional declivity) throughout, the jungle of bamboos and common jungle trees, thick and impenetrable owing to the creepers. The march, though only 8 miles, was made with difficulty from the thickness of the jungle. Some detached hills to the southward, in which the Thalueen flows to the south a little westerly.

17th December 1829. Course N.80° E., distance 7 miles 4 furlongs. 7.30 proceeded for some way along a path of the same character as yesterday. 8.15 along a swampy path at the foot of a nearly perpindicular rock, but covered with verdure to the top. 8.35 another rock like the former (called by the Careens Lein Koso), path better. 8.45 crossed a small stream with steep banks at the side of a village deserted last year by the Careens, who remove annually to a new position. It is now overgrown with tall jungle. 9.30 crossed the Yembyne river, wide 30, deep 3 or 4 feet, rocky bed, swarming with fish. Halted for half an hour.

Light of the control of the control

10.30 path soft, a long valley winding amongst the hills with long grass and dwarf bamboos, much intersected by tracks of elephants, rhinoceros and wild hog. Pea fowls also abundant. 11.10 again \* crossed the Yembyne river, wide 40 feet, course S.20° E. 11.20 \*\*

having crossed the river again, at 11.30 halted on the eastern bank (course S.65° E.) where it is joined by a small stream called the Mean Keun, running S.50° W., the path nearly as yesterday, continued to ascend. Here we were joined by the Careens from the second village and dismissed those who had accompanied us the last two marches.

18th December 1829. Course N.80° E., distance 10 miles 4 furlongs. 7.30 crossed the Mean Keun four times in 20 minutes and proceeded among a rocky path through thick jungle. 7.50 crossed the end of the Dagyne path in a level part of the jungle, the site of a Burman encampment 40 years ago, when the Burmans are said to have taken Zimmay, and where some opposition was offered by the Shans. 8.30 crossed Yea-ta-goon Keun, 20 feet wide, clear, rocky bed. 9.00 came on the banks of the Yembyne river. 9.10 crossed a small stream falling into the last. 9.30 path soft, through long grass surrounded by hills. 9.40 along the rocky bed of Yea-ta-goon Keun (waterfall stream). 10.30 halted for half an hour. 11.00 ascended with some difficulty the face of a broken rock, 3 or 400 feet in height, amongst which the waters of the Yea-ta-goon Keun fall.

11.30 halted at the top of the waterfall within sound of another which we heard tumbling from the hills above us to the eastward. The path today continued ascending and very bad, either soft with long grass or rocky and uneven and extremely tortuous. But the Careens say it is the only pass through this part of the hills, that elephants, horses and bullocks formerly travelled it with loads, and that it was the route of the Burman army in 1790. Passed some of the large bamboos peculiar to this country, some catechu, and some of the trees with the sap of which the Careens poison their arrows. The rest of the jungle consisted of common jungle trees, immense creepers and the common bamboos. Tracks of elephants and wild hogs were numerous, but no marks of the rhinoceros, which are confined to the more level part of the country where grass is abundant. They do not roam like the elephants.

The state of the s

This part of the country was formerly inhabited by the Lowa Talienes and the places still bear Lowa names. The same race extended to the Moy Toum before the country was devastated by the Burmans, whose bloodthirsty rapacity had depopulated the whole of this part of the ancient Taline kingdome.

6th March 1830. Direction S.30° W., time 4 hours 15 minutes, distance 12 miles 2 furlongs. 8.30 good path through open jungle and long grass. 11.00 remains of Careen villages. 11.20 plains of considerable extent, marks of wild cattle. 12.25 halted in consequence of the jungle in advance being on fire. 1.40 proceeded, and at 2.00 halted on the south-west bank of the Chline Boye (which falls into the Gyne a short distance in a S.70° E. direction from this) in the bed of the Chline-putty. Such is the level nature of the country that this stream runs into the Chline Boye in the beginning of the rains and out of it after they have fairly set in. The bed of the Chline Boye, which rises 20 or 25 feet in the rains, is here 80 or 100 feet wide, the water about knee-deep in some places, in others of great depth and frequented by alligators, and that of the Chline-putty about 30 wide and 25 deep. They were both choked up with fallen trees, and the latter dry at this season.

The march today has been through a level country, the jungle open with long grass and four or five small plains covered with small grass much cut up by the jungle cattle, elephants' tracks still intersecting in all directions. Saw some rhinoceros marks today. Their feet are smaller than the elephant's, toes more apart and the nails longer. Sent two sick people to proceed down the Gyne in boats under charge of the head Careen.

7th March 1830. Direction S.20° E., time 2 hours 30 minutes, distance 7 miles. 8.30 proceeded along a good path, and level. 9.30 plain with long grass. 10.45 large plain of paddy stubble covered with upwards of 200 buffaloes belonging to the Careen village of 28 or 30 houses called Twine Woot or Twine Bot. 11.00 halted at the end of the plain. No more water for a long march.

The road has been perfectly level today and a great part of it through plains of long grass. The eastern hills in sight, distant 18 or 20 miles, running north and south, of considerable height, the only hills except the Colung Hills on the westward of the Thalueen since leaving the Yentogoon Hills.

8th March 1830. Direction S.35° W., time 2 hours 20 minutes, distance 10 miles. 10.10 proceeded along a level path through a country of the same character as yesterday. 1.40 plain with *ine* trees, hills to the S.60° E, distant 15 miles, rocky hills crossing. 2.00 bed of the Thanbou river. 2.30 halted at the broken bridge over the Atsong river on the high road from Martaban to the town of Gyne, about ten miles from Gyne and an equal distance from Domitta, and within sound of the evening gun of Maulmain. The town of Gyne was destroyed in a revolt of the Talines about twenty years ago. The road today was good and level, very beautiful plains, less water than usual but plenty for cattle or passengers.

9th March 1830. Direction S.20° W., time 6 hours, distance 17 miles. 8.10 route continues through level grassy plain with occasional patches of jungle. 10.50 Caloak Hill S.20° E., distant 6 miles. 11.00 Dzoyga-been Hill S.20° W., distant 7 miles. 11.11 paddy stubble. 1.00 an extreme field of two-crop paddy now in the car, the only ground we have seen from which two crops are obtained. 2.10 halted near the Thaung-thoo village of Naung-loong, containing about 30 houses and probably about 200 inhabitants. Found here a body of about 100 of the annual caravans of the Shan-Goung-bee Shans, who have been nearly four months of the road from their own country in the north.

The road today level and generally free from jungle, through plains of fine long grass. The path has been extremely tortuous and for the last two hours unnecessarily winding in all manner of directions through a plain of short grass or paddy stubble. The whole of the plains in this neighbourhood are covered with rich green grass, enough for the subsistence of an immense number of cattle through

#### © 2004 by Anthony Farrington. All rights reserved.

© Cover picture by British Library, (OICO: Photo 94/2 (74))

White Lotus Co., Ltd. GPO Box 1141 Bangkok 10501 Thailand

Telephone: (662) 332-4915 and (662) 741-6288-9

Fax: (662) 741-6607 and (662) 741-6287

E-mail: ande@loxinfo.co.th Website: http://thailine.com/lotus

Printed in Thailand

ISBN: 974-4800-48-8

Cover picture: Moulmein from the Great Pagoda (Bourne & Shepherd Studio, Calcutta, 1870s)

#### **Contents**

Introduction	VII
1. 11 December 1829-10 March 1830 A journal of a mission from A.D.Maingy Esquire, Commissioner in the Tenasserim Provinces, to the Zemmai or Chong Mai Shans, called by us the Northern Laos and by the Siamese the Lao Thai.	
2. 6 March-21 May 1834 Narrative of a second mission to the Chiefs of Labong and Zimmay or Changmai (denominated by themselves, by us Northern Laos, and by the Burmese Yeun Shan) from Edward Augustus Blundell, Esquire, officiating Commissioner in the Tenasserim Provinces.	57
3. 29 December 1835-10 May 1836 Dr Richardson's third mission to the Laos Shans.	109
4. 18 December 1838-23 August 1839  Journal of a mission from the Supreme Government of India to the Court of Siam.	125
Abstract of Dr Richardson's journey to the Northern Shan or Laos States, 19 March-23 August 1839.	213
Dr Richardson's account of Laos Shan attacks on the Burmese frontier, with extracts from his journal, 8 May-5 August 1839.	
Dr Richardson's summary account of his stay at Bangkok, February-March 1839.	236
Notes Applicate to the second property of the	245
Glossary	253
Index	263

# Dr Richardson's missions to Siam 1829-1839

Edited by
Anthony Farrington



· White Lotus Press

2007

pn. xxi,271

running in direction SSE with a dip to the WSW. The river measured here about 300 feet, much less than one would be led to suppose from the undoubted length of its course. In the night heard deer and tiger. In the evening saw some pea fowls and wild ducks etc.

15th December 1829. Halted to apportion the loads to the coolies and to send forward for the Careens from the first village.

16th December 1829. Course N.70° E., distance 8 miles. 8.30 proceeded along a good path, practicable for bullocks, elephants etc. 9.35 at the bottom of a sharp and rather steep descent crossed the Yembyne river, about 70 feet broad, running S.45° E. 11.40 halted for the night on the banks of a small grassy lake. The path has been good and gently ascending (with an occasional declivity) throughout, the jungle of bamboos and common jungle trees, thick and impenetrable owing to the creepers. The march, though only 8 miles, was made with difficulty from the thickness of the jungle. Some detached hills to the southward, in which the Thalueen flows to the south a little westerly.

17th December 1829. Course N.80° E., distance 7 miles 4 furlongs. 7.30 proceeded for some way along a path of the same character as yesterday. 8.15 along a swampy path at the foot of a nearly perpindicular rock, but covered with verdure to the top. 8.35 another rock like the former (called by the Careens Lein Koso), path better. 8.45 crossed a small stream with steep banks at the side of a village deserted last year by the Careens, who remove annually to a new position. It is now overgrown with tall jungle. 9.30 crossed the Yembyne river, wide 30, deep 3 or 4 feet, rocky bed, swarming with fish. Halted for half an hour.

10.30 path soft, a long valley winding amongst the hills with long grass and dwarf bamboos, much intersected by tracks of elephants, rhinoceros and wild hog. Pea fowls also abundant. 11.10 again crossed the Yembyne river, wide 40 feet, course S.20° E. 11.20

having crossed the river again, at 11.30 halted on the eastern bank (course S.65° E.) where it is joined by a small stream called the Mean Keun, running S.50° W., the path nearly as yesterday, continued to ascend. Here we were joined by the Careens from the second village and dismissed those who had accompanied us the last two marches.

18th December 1829. Course N.80° E., distance 10 miles 4 furlongs. 7.30 crossed the Mean Keun four times in 20 minutes and proceeded among a rocky path through thick jungle. 7.50 crossed the end of the Dagyne path in a level part of the jungle, the site of a Burman encampment 40 years ago, when the Burmans are said to have taken Zimmay, and where some opposition was offered by the Shans. 8.30 crossed Yea-ta-goon Keun, 20 feet wide, clear, rocky bed. 9.00 came on the banks of the Yembyne river. 9.10 crossed a small stream falling into the last. 9.30 path soft, through long grass surrounded by hills. 9.40 along the rocky bed of Yea-ta-goon Keun (waterfall stream). 10.30 halted for half an hour. 11.00 ascended with some difficulty the face of a broken rock, 3 or 400 feet in height, amongst which the waters of the Yea-ta-goon Keun fall.

11.30 halted at the top of the waterfall within sound of another which we heard tumbling from the hills above us to the eastward. The path today continued ascending and very bad, either soft with long grass or rocky and uneven and extremely tortuous. But the Careens say it is the only pass through this part of the hills, that elephants, horses and bullocks formerly travelled it with loads, and that it was the route of the Burman army in 1790. Passed some of the large bamboos peculiar to this country, some catechu, and some of the trees with the sap of which the Careens poison their arrows. The rest of the jungle consisted of common jungle trees, immense creepers and the common bamboos. Tracks of elephants and wild hogs were numerous, but no marks of the rhinoceros, which are confined to the more level part of the country where grass is abundant. They do not roam like the elephants.

eastward. The whole march today through the same open forest of pine, the path good and the hills not at all steep. Shot a jungle cow. There are abundance of them in the valley near our route. The flesh was harder than the worst buffaloe's. Tigers and the common deer are abundant.

19th February 1830. I have been obliged to halt today to refresh the elephants, as the passes are said to be difficult and no forage for three days for the elephants, of which there are seventeen large and four small ones. We are now on the site of a small city formerly inhabited by Talines, to whom all the country to the westward formerly belonged, and more lately to the Shans, but has been deserted some years on account of the devastation committed by the Burmans. The valley is a few miles in extent and through it runs the May Tuan river, which at this season is about two feet deep, and as it falls into the May-ping was formerly navigable for small canoes to Bankok. Its course is extremely winding. I have been engaged today in getting Ponya Tchi to construct a map of the Shan country, over every part of which he has repeatedly travelled. It is extremely rude, but correct. as far as I can judge from the concurrent testimony of other people, as to the situation of the large towns and courses of the rivers. No villages or small towns could be inserted for want of room.

20th February 1830. Direction S.50° W., time 16 hours 30 minutes, distance 30 miles. At 9.00 ascended along a rugged bad path. 10.07 descent. The firs, which had been gradually diminishing in number through the whole of today's march, are now only to be seen in single trees towering above the other trees of the jungle. 3.48 halted in a ravine of very thick jungle on the west bank of the May Tuan, running to the northward.

The march today has been the longest as to time, the most toilsome and disagreeable since leaving Maulmain. The path has been either up or down steep, almost precipitous hills, or along the bottom of ravines into which the sun can only shine a few hours in the day, and since half past ten our course, through a thick jungle, has been all round the compass and I have been obliged to note its direction no less than eighty times to get at anything like a correct general direction, and we are again on the banks of the river which we left this morning, the course of which is even more tortuous than the one we have come. We are encamped on a small level spot of a few hundred yards surrounded by high hills, the jungle extremely thick but abounding in the hills with deer of all sizes, cows, buffaloes, tigers, leopards and rhinoceros. We passed to the end of the road which runs more to the eastward and along which the bullocks are to come. The path is much better but there are no inhabitants in that direction.

21st February 1830. Direction S.65° W., time 7 hours, distance 15 miles. At 9.16 proceeded along a narrow ascending path in thick jungle. At 4.45 halted on the May Koung, wide 30 deep 1½ feet, pebbly bed, a short way from Kana, a Karean village.

The march today has been over a succession of hills, some of which were nearly perpindicular and I should think almost impassable for a loaded bullock, though the elephants have travelled with ease. The path is well shaded and abundance of water, indeed the jungle has generally been so thick that we could only see a little of the path before us and a ravine or hill close to the road. The march on the whole was less disagreeable than yesterday, having been more on the hills. Between 10.26 and 10.40 passed a hill on which there are a great many lofty cinnamon trees, the only ones known by the Karreans to exist in any of the hills and are not at all prized by them. The bark is about two inches thick and of good flavour when fresh, but acquires a bitter taste when dry. Passed some immense trees, called by the Burmans couch moo, of which the canoes are made, said to be large enough to make a canoe for 5 or 600 baskets of paddy.

groups to an ex-